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Washington, D .  C .  

November 24, 1964 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
Be£o r e  t h e  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 

I n  t h e  Mat te r  of 

CROW, BROURMAN 6 CHATKIN, INC.  
30 Broad S t r e e t  
New York 4,  New York 

F i l e  No. 8-9763 

RECOMMENDED DEClSlON 

ERRATA 

The appearance noted f o r  Norman C .  E i s e n s t a d t  and 

Joseph  S .  Lenchner should be changed t o  read  a s  fol lows:  

Will iam D .  Matthews, Esq. of Whitlock,  Markey and 
T a i t ,  Esqs.  and Edward M. C i t r o n ,  Esq. of 
P i t t s b u r g h ,  Pennsylvania  f o r  Norman C .  E i s e n s t a d t  
and J o s e p h  S. Lenchner. 

H aring Examiner9' 



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

Bef o r e  t h e  


SEC VRITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 


I n  t h e  Mat te r  of 

CROW, BROURMAN 6 CHATKIN, INC. 
30 Broad S t r e e t  
New York 4, New York 

F i l e  No. 8-9763 

RECOMNDED DECISION 

BEFORE: 	 I r v i n g  S c h i l l e r ,  Hear ing Examiner 

APPEARANCES: 	 Alexander J .  Brown, J r . ,  David M. Butowsky and 
Michael  J .  S t e w a r t ,  Esqs . ,  For t h e  D i v i s i o n  of 
T r a d i n g  and Markets.  

S y l v e s t r i  S y l v e s t r i ,  Esq. of P i t t s b u r g h ,  Pennsy lvan ia  

and Havens, Wandless, S t i t t  6 T ighe ,  Esqs .  of 

N e w  York C i t y  f o r  Crow, Brourman 6 Chatk in ,  I n c . ,  

Thomas S e b e r r y  Crow and S a u l  Brourman. 


Edward M. C i t r o n ,  Esq. of G r a v e l l e ,  Whi t lock,  

Markey 6 T a i t ,  Esqs. f o r  Norman C. E i s e n s t a d t  and 

Joseph  S .  Lenchner. 


C o u r t s  Oulahan,  Esq. f o r  Gordon E. Whiteman. 

Arnold A. S t a h l ,  Esq. of S t a h l  6 Neuman, E s q s . ,  
f o r  John  G .  O ' N e i l l .  

Tony Rawe p r o  se. 



These a r e  proceedings pursuant t o  Sec t ion  15(b)  of t h e  Secur i -  

t ies  Exchange Act of 1934 ("Exchange Acta1) t o  determine whether t h e  

r e g i s t r a t i o n  a s  a  broker  and d e a l e r  of Crow, Brourman & Chatkin,  Inc .  

( " r e g i s t r a n t H )  should be revoked, whether t o  suspend o r  expel  r e g i s t r a n t  

from membership i n  t h e  Nat ional  Associat ion of S e c u r i t i e s  Dea le rs ,  

Inc .  (I'NASD"), a n a t i o n a l  s e c u r i t i e e  a s s o c i a t i o n ,  and whether under 

Sec t ion  15A(b)(4) of t h e  Exchange Act Thomas Seberry Crow ("Crow"), 

Saul Brourman ("BrourmanIa1, Tony R a w e  (llRawell1, David Daye (81Daye" , 

Edward S.  G r i f f i t h s  ( "Gr i f f i t h s " ) ,  Ray S. Sugden, J r . ,  ("Sugden14), 

W i l l i a m  J .  P r i c e  (l8PriceI1),  William J. Abbott (I1Abbott"), Conrad C .  

Compton (I1Comptonl8), Robert Oscar B ih l e r  (81Bihler11) ,Joseph S .  Lenchner 

("Lenchner1I 1 ,  Donald R .  DeVall (I1DeVal 1") , Norman C .  E i  s ens t ad t  

( IIEisenstadt" ) , Michael Shaub (l1ShaubIt 1, Fred R i  l ey  ( I 8 R i  leym1) , 

Gordon E. Whi teman ("Whi teman" 1,  Jack Grover ("GroverI11,  Dorman E. S i s k  

(I 'Siska1) and John G.  OINe i l l  (I1O'Neill'l), o r  any of them, a r e  causes  of 

-1/ 
any o rde r  of revoca t ion ,  suspension o r  expuls ion which may be i s sued .  

-1/ The s e c u r i t i e s  a c t s  amendments of 1964 (Publ ic  Law 88-467) amends, 
among o t h e r  s e c t i o n s ,  Sec t ions  15(b)  and 1 5 ~  t h e  Exchange Act. of 
Since t h e s e  proceedings were i n s t i t u t e d  p r i o r  t o  ~ u g u s t  20, 1964, t h e  
d a t e  Pres ident  Johnson signed t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  a c t s  amendments of 1964, 
t h e  r e f e r ences  throughout t h i s  recommended dec i s ion  w i l l  be t o  t h e  
provis ions  of t h e  Exchange Act a s  i n  e f f e c t  p r i o r  t o  August 20, 1964. 

Sec t ion  15(b)  of t h e  Exchange Act, a s  app l i cab l e  here ,  provides  t h a t  
t h e  Commission s h a l l  revoke t h e  r e g i s t r a t i o n  of a  broker  o r  dea l e r  i f  
i t  f i n d s  t h a t  i t  i s  i n  t h e  publ ic  i n t e r e s t  and t h a t  such broker o r  
d e a l e r  o r  any o f f i c e r ,  d i r e c t o r ,  o r  c o n t r o l l i n g  o r  con t ro l l ed  person 



(Registrant and all of the foregoing named individuals are hereinafter 


sometimes collectively referred to as "respondents".) 


The order for proceedings alleges that from approximately 


August 1, 1962 to approximately April 30, 1963 all of the above-named 


respondents, singly and in concert, willfully violated and aided and 


abetted willful violations of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act of 


1933 ("Securities Act") and Sections 10(b), 15(c)(l) and 17(a) of the 


Exchange Act and Rules 17 CFR 240.10b5, 10b6, 15cl-2, 15cl-8 and 17a3 


thereunder, in the offer and sale of the common stocksof Champion 


Industries, Inc. (88Champion"), P.C.S. Data Processing, Inc. (I8P.C.S."), 


Youngwood Electronic Metals, Inc. ("Youngwoodat), Bundy Electronics, 


Inc. ("Bundyu) and Saf ticraft Corporation ("Saf ticraf tat). 


After appropriate notice, hearings were held before the 


undersigned hearing examiner. Proposed findings of fact and conclusions 


of such broker or dealer, has willfully violated any provision of 

that Act or of the Securities Act of 1933 or any rule thereunder. 


Section 15A(1)(2) of the Exchange Act provides for the suspension 

for a maximum of twelve months or the expulsion from a national 

securities association of any member who has violated any provision 

of the Exchange Act or has willfully violated any provision of the 

Securities Act of 1933 or any rule or regulation thereunder if the 

Commission finds such action to be necessary or appropriate in the 

public interest or for the protection of investors. 


Under Section 15A(b)(4) of the Exchange Act, in the absence of 

Commission approval or direction, no broker or dealer may be admitted 

to or continued in membership in a national securities association 

if the broker or dealer or any partner, officer, director or con- 

trolling or controlled person of such broker or dealer was a cause 

of any order of revocation which is in effect. 
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of law and briefs in support thereof were filed by the Division of 


Trading and Markets and by respondents Eisenstadt, Lenchner and 


-2/ 
Whi teman. 


The following findings and conclusions are based on the record, 
. 
the documents and exhibits therein and the hearing exanliner's observation 


of the various witnesses. 


1. Registrant, a Pennsylvania corporation, becanre registered 


as a broker-dealer pursuant to Section l5(b) of the Exchange Act on 


July 25, 1961 under the name of Frankstreet & Co. In March 1962 

registrant merged with Crow 6 Co. and adopted its present name. In 

July 1962 registrant acquired certain assets and liabilities of 


Lenchner, Covato & Co., Znc. ("Lenchner Covato") and, in addition, 

continued the employment of practically all of Lenchner Covato's sales 


and other personnel. In December 1962 registrant acquired George 


O'Neill 61 Co., Inc., with offices in New York, Fort Lauderdale and 

Miami, Florida. This latter acquisition involved taking over custon~ers' 


-
-2 / Registrant, Crow and Brourman participated in the proceedings but 

filed no proposed findings or brief. Respondents Grover, Bihler, 

Griffiths, Price, Riley, DeVall, Shaub, Daye and Sisk filed answers or 

notices of appearance but did not participate in the proceedings nor 

file any proposed findings or brlefs. Respondent Sugden filed what 

may be considered a notice of appearance but no answer and respondent 

Compton, who was served with copies of the order for proceedings and 

the order fixing the time and place of the proceedings, filed no 

answer. Neither of these two respondents participated in the pro- 

ceedings. Respondent Abbott filed an answer but did not participate 

in the proceedings except as a witness for the Division of Trading 

and Markets and did not file any proposed findings or brief. 

Respondent OaNeill testified in his own behalf but filed no proposed 

findings or brief. Eawe participated in part of the proceedings but 

offered no defense in his own behalf nor filed proposed findings or 

brief. 




I 
I accounts and assuming liability for all customer credit balances, short 


positions and certain other net liabilities. Crow was and is president, 


director and beneficial owner of 10% or more of registrant's capital 


stock. Brourman was and is executive vice president, treasurer and a 


director of registrant. Registrant is a member of the NASD. 


Fraudulent Sale of Chanpion Stock 


2. The order for proceedings alleges, among other things, 


that during the period approximately August 1, 1962 to approximately 


April 30, 1963 registrant, in concert with the other respondents, made 


untrue statements of material facts and omitted to state material facts 


to purchasers of the common stock of Champion in willful violation of 


-31 
the anti-fraud provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act. 


3. Twenty-two witnesses testified as to the representations 


concerning Champion made to them by twelve of registrant's salesmen 


located both in the Pittsburgh and Florida offices. The salesmen told 


these customers, among other things, that the Champion stock would go 


up in price, that it could double or triple within six months, that it 


could or would go up to stated amounts ranging from one-half a point in 


two or three weeks to $6 or $7 within six months, that the stock would 


-3/ The anti-fraud provisions referred to are Section 17(a) of the 
Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and 15(c)(l) of the Exchange Act 
and Rules lob-5 and 15~1-2( 17 CFR 240.10b-5 and 15~1-2) thereunder. 
The composite effect of these provisions, as applicable here, is to 
make unlawful the use of the mails or interstate facilities in 
connection with the offer or sale of any security by means of a 
device to defraud, an untrue or misleading statement of a material 
fact, or any act, practice, or course of business which operates or 
would operate as a fraud or deceit upon a customer, or by means of 

any other manipulative or fraudulent device. 
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move up when r e g i s t r a n t  s t a r t e d  t o  l i q u i d a t e  a  sho r t  p o s i t i o n  which i t  

w a s  maintaining,  t h a t  Champion had a l ready  acquired one o r  two companies 

and w a s  about t o  acqu i r e  o r  merge wi th  o t h e r  companies t h e  e f f e c t  of 

which would be t o  i n c r e a s e  t h e  p r i c e  of t h e  s tock ,  t h a t  Champion was 

a very good buy, t h a t  i t  w a s  a n t i c i p a t e d  t h a t  i t s  earn ings  would be 
-4/ 

25C per  share  and t h a t  Champion had g r e a t  growth p o s s i b i l i t i e s .  

Seven of t h e  twelve salesmen made repeated telephone c a l l s  t o  t h e  same 

customers and f r equen t ly  a customer who had made one purchase was pre-

v a i l e d  upon t o  make a d d i t i o n a l  purchases of Champion s tock  and were t o l d  

t h a t  e i t h e r  t h e  p r i c e  had increased o r  had dropped and t h e  i n v e s t o r  

would do w e l l  by averaging down. One such salesman so ld  Champion s tock  

t o  a customer on s i x  s epa ra t e  occas ions ,  f o u r  i n  January,  once i n  

February and once i n  March. Two of such salesmen so ld  Champion s tock  

t o  t h e  same customers on fou r  s e p a r a t e  occasions and fou r  of such 

salesmen so ld  t h e  same customers on t h r e e  s epa ra t e  occasions.  

4. Five of such salesmen induced t h e i r  customers t o  s e l l  

o t h e r  s e c u r i t i e s ,  some of which were l i s t e d  on a n a t i o n a l  s e c u r i t i e s  

exchange, r ep re sen t ing  t o  such customers t h a t  they could do much b e t t e r  

wi th  Champion s tock  i n  terms of i n c r e a s e  i n  t he  p r i c e  of t h a t  s tock  than  

they could with t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  t h a t  they were then holding.  Several  

customers f u r t h e r  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  when they requested r e g i s t r a n t ' s  s a l e s -

man t o  sell Champion s tock  they w e r e  disuaded from doing and were t o l d  

-41 Not a l l  of t h e  r ep re sen t a t i ons  were made by each of t h e  salesmen t o  
each of t h e  customers, however nea r ly  every customer w a s  t o l d  of t h e  
p o s s i b i l i t y  of a p r i c e  i n c r e a s e  and t h a t  Champion had e i t h e r  a l ready  
acquired o r  merged with one o r  more companies o r  w a s  about t o  do so .  



t h a t  t h e  Champion s tock  would be su re  t o  move up very s h o r t l y .  Zn 

add i t i on ,  a number of t h e  customers were t o l d  t h a t  t h e  p re s iden t  of 

Champion had p r i o r  exper ience  i n  acqu i r ing  companies and i n  one 

i n s t ance  had s u c c e s s f u l l y  increased  t h e  p r i c e  of a s tock  up t o  $35 a 

sha re  i n t ima t ing  t h a t  t h e  s a i d  p re s iden t  might do t h e  same f o r  Champion. 

5. There was no reasonable  b a s i s  f o r  t h e  r ep re sen t a t i ons  

made t o  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  customers regard ing  p r i c e  app rec i a t i on ,  acqu i s i -

t i o n s  and mergers,  ea rn ings ,  o r  t h a t  an investment i n  Champion s tock  

was a good investment f o r  any p a r t i c u l a r  customer. I n  f a c t  a l l  such 

r ep re sen t a t i ons  were f a l s e  and misleading.  Champion had been organized 

i n  1955 t o  manufacture and sell metal awnings. By J u l y  of 1962 Champion 

w a s  a holding company whose on ly  asset was United S t a t e s  Amusement 

Company which owned and operated t h r e e  amusement park r i d e s .  For t h e  

year  ended September 30, 1962 t h e  United S t a t e s  Amusement Company had 

a n e t  l o s s  i n  excess  of $9,000. It appears  t h a t  t h e  s a i d  company has  

been dormant s i n c e  August 1962. I n  t h e  l a t t e r  p a r t  of Ju ly  1962 

Champion purchased Forsberg Manufacturing Co. (laForsbergta) f o r  $500,000. 

Under t h e  terms of t h e  purchase agreement $100,000 was paid i n  cash  

and t h e  balance secured by Champion's promissory no t e s  payable over  a 

th ree-year  per iod .  The $100,000 cash  payment was made by ob ta in ing  a 

week-end loan from a bus iness  a s s o c i a t e  of t h e  c o n t r o l l i n g  s tockholder  

of Champion, which loan was r epa id  immediately by the  execut ion of a 

mortgage by Champion on t h e  p l an t  and machinery of Forsberg. 

6.  Champion kept no books o r  records  except  f o r  a check 



maintained through September 1962. A financial statement for the year 


ended September 30, 1961 disclosed that Champion had a net operating 


loss of approximately $143,700 and a retained deficit of about $61,800. 


On or about November 30, 1962 Champion engaged an accounting firm to 


prepare a financial statement for the period ended September 30, 1962. 


On or about January 10, 1963 a financial statement was completed showing 


an operating loss of about $243,900 and a deficit of approximately 


$305,700. 


7. On October 1, 1962 when the first note was due on the 


Forsberg acquisition Champion defaulted in payment. In November 1962 


Forsberg had no funds available to meet its payroll or pay its 


creditors. In December 1962 Forsberg was in arrears in the payment of 


Federal taxes in the amount of approximately $12,000. 


8. On February 1, 1963 the former owner of Forsberg sued 


Champion and its management for breach of contract and fraud in the 


management of Forsberg. On February 5, 1963 Crow loaned Champion 


$10,000 upon information that Champion was about to lose Forsberg. On 


or about February 19, 1963 Forsberg's prior owner took physical 


possession and control of the plant. On March 19, 1963 Forsberg filed 


a Chapter 10 proceeding under the Bankruptcy Act with schedules 


reflecting assets of approximately $272,000 and liabilities of approxi- 


mately $338,000. 


9. Any reasonable investigation by Crow and Brourman prior to 


undertaking the sale of Champion stock to its customers would have 




disclosed the extent of the losses of Champion and its precarious 


financial condition. The only knowledge of Champion came from a visit 


to the Forsberg plant by Crow in the fall of 1962 at the suggestion 


of Abbott, one of his salesmen, and a conversation Crow had at the 


time with Albert N. Dukow, the president of Champion, who stated that 


he hoped to build up Champion through Forsberg and other acquisitions. 


Crow was not impressed with the Forsberg plant or its operations and 


was not interested in Champion. Nevertheless registrant without 


further information or investigation started its campaign to sell 


Champion in the first week of January 1963. Though Crow and Brournan 


requested financial statements on several occasions none were ever 


received and no financial information was ever given to any prospective 


investor. In the latter part of January or early February Crow and 


Brourman learned of Champion's inability to meet its first payment due 


on the Forsberg acquisition and at Dukow's request Crow loaned $10,000 


to Champion, receiving about 14,000 shares of Champion stock as 


collateral. Sales of Champion stock continued without disclosure of 


such fact to customers. 


10. On or about February 20, 1963 Crow and Brourman were 


informed that Champion was no longer in possession or control of 


Forsberg. They went to the Forsberg plant, consulted with Forsberg's 


attorneys and learned that Dulmw had been ousted and a lawsuit started 


against Champion. There is some evidence in the record that instruc- 


tions were presumably issued to registrant's salesmen to cease the sale 




of Champion's stock until further notice. However, the record reflects 


that between February 21 and February 28, 1963, inclusive, registrant 


sold 7,215 additional shares of Champion. Registrant's sales 


apparently ceased for a two-week period between March 1 and March 15, 


1963. On or about March 15 Dukow informed registrant that he had re- 


negotiated the acquisition of Forsberg and on the strength of such 


representation and without any further investigation registrant 


immediately resumed sales of Champion stock. Between the period of 


March 15 through March 25 an additional 12,670 shares were sold. 


Between the period January 9, 1963 when registrant first commenced 


the sale of Champion stock to the end of March registrant sold approxi- 


-5/ 
mately 112,500 shares. 

11. The Commission has consistently held that a prediction of 


a specific or substantial increase in the price of a speculative 


-6/ 
security is a badge of fraud and cannot be justified. Though Crow 


and Brourman were informed of Champion's losses for the year 1961, each 


of the witnesses who testified as to the representations made to them 


emphatically denied ever being informed of such losses. Moreover, in 


-5 / The record shows that registrant's total sales of Champion stock 
during this period amounted to 120,860 shares. Registrant's 
cancellations during the same period amounted to 8,350 shares 
leaving a net of total sales of 112,510 shares. 

-6/ J. A. Winston 6 Co., Inc., S.E.A. Release No, 7337 (June 8, 1964); 
Alexander Reid 6 Co., Inc., 40 S.E.C. 986, 991 (1962). 



January 1963 the accounting firm engaged by Dukow had available the 


information concerning the huge losses of Champion for the year 1962, 


yet registrant made no effort to contact the accountants to learn the 


financial condition of Champion although Crow and Brourman knew the 


name of the accountants and could have readily ascertained the 


information. Obviously none of the investors were told of Champion's 


losses during the year 1962. In the face of the huge mounting losses 


any prediction of a price rise was completely unwarranted. 


12. With respect to the representations made by registrant's 


salesmen to customers concerning mergers and acquisitions, it is clear 


from the record that other than the acquisition of Forsberg in July 


1962, no other companies were ever acquired by Champion. There is 


evidence that in January 1963 Champion and Forsberg executed a contract 


to purchase Sterling Wholesale Hardware Co. of Chicago, Illinois for 


$300,000. At the time of the execution of the contract neither Champion 


nor Forsberg had available $300,000 to complete the contract for the 


acquisition nor were they able to finance such acquisition. By the end 


of January 1963 Crow and Brourman knew that Champion and Forsberg were 


unable to acquire Sterling. The misrepresentations concerning the 


acquisition of Sterling nevertheless continued. There is also some 


evidence in the record that Dukow contacted the managements of two 


other companies concerning possible merger or acquisition but no under- 


standing was ever reactred nor were any other contracts for acquisitions 


or mergers prepared. 




13. It is abundantly clear from the record that the merger 


information which registrant had concerning Champion and Forsberg, 


coupled with the absence of financial information concerning either 


company, did not justify the representations made by registrant's 


salesmen that Champion stock would double or triple or increase in 


price or that Champion had acquired or was about to acquire a number 


of other companies which would result in a successful operation or 


a profitable company. 


14. It is well settled that the making of representations 


to prospective purchasers without a reasonable basis, couched in 


terms of either opinion or fact and designed to induce purchasers 


is contrary to the basic obligation of fair dealing of brokers who 


-7/ 
sell securities to the public. Crow and Brourman testified that in 


recommending Champion as a vehicle for its salesmen to sell to cus- 


tomers they relied basically upon the hopes and expectations of Dukow 


concerning the future of Champion. They believed that Dukow would 


build up Champion by acquisitions or mergers and that Champion would 


be a good company to recommend to their customers as a speculation. 


Beliefs as to the future success of a company on the basis of 


inadequate information hardly served to furnish a reasonable basis 


for registrant's recommending the security to its customers and cer- 


-8 / 
tainly not for the type of reckless representations made to them. 


-71 Mac Robbins 6 Co., Inc., Securities Exchange Act Release No. 6846 
(July 11, 1962). 

-8/ N. Pinsker 6 Co., Inc., 40 S.E.C. 285, 291-292 (19601. 



Registrant's lack of understanding of its duties and responsibilities 


as a broker-dealer to its customers is demonstrated by the fact that 


at the end of February 1963, having learned that Champion was in 


desperate financial condition and had lost its sole operating sub- 


sidiary, it nevertheless continued selling Champion stock and in March, 


after a short interval, resumed selling without further investigation 


upon the verbal assurances of Dukow that Champion was back in an 


operating position and would presumably still be a successful company. 


No disclosure was made to any of the customers sold in this period of 


the recent financial difficulties experienced by Champion. 


15. The hearing examiner finds that in the sale of Champion 


stock in the period January through March 1963 registrant, together with 


or aided and abetted by Crow and Brourman, who were registrant's 


principal officers, directors and stockholders and both of whom were 


admittedly active in its management and operations, willfully violated 


the anti-fraud provision of Section 17(a) of the Securities Act and 


Sections 10(b) and 15(c) of the Exchange Act and Rules 17 CFR 240.10b5 


and 15~1- 2 thereunder. 


Sales of Champion by Rawe, Daye, Griffiths, 
Sugden, Bihler, Price, Compton, De Vat! an$ Crqver 

16. The Commission's order for proceedings alleges that the 


above-named salesmen sold Champion stock and in connection therewith made 


the false and misleading representations and omissions to state material 


facts set forth above. None of the foregoing individuals presented any 




evidence on their own behalf. Since no evidence to the contrary was 


offered, the hearing examiner credits the testimony of the investor- 


witnesses regarding the statemeats made by each of the salesmen as well 


as their testimony as to the omissions to state material facts. 


17. All nine of registrant's salesmen informed their customers 


in one manner or another that the price of the stock would increase, 


Daye saying the customer"shou1d expect definitely an increase in price 


in six months!'; Price, saying it would go up three or four points; 


Compton representing that the stock would go up to five or further; 


DeVall saying that Champion was in a short position at registrant and 


would go up shortly; Griffiths stating that it would go up one-half 


within a short time; Grover advising that it would rise a couple of 


points; Rawe saying that Champion would increase in value; Bihler 


representing that the investor would double his money in six months; 


and Sugden representing that it would go up to six or seven. 


18. Seven of the nine salesmen informed their customers in 


one manner or another that Champion was embarked on an acquisition 


program and had either acquired or was about to acquire additional 


companies, Daye saying that additional requisitions were pending; 


Price saying that Champion was working on acquisitions and picking 


up companies; Compton stating that Champion was working on acquisi- 


tions; Griffiths saying that Champion was going to acquire a company; 


Rawe stating that mergers were imminent; Bihler representing that 


Champion was buying up concerns and Sugden stating that Champion will 




merge. 


19. A l l  n i ne  of t h e  salesmen r ep re sen t ed  t o  t h e i r  customers  

i n  one manner o r  ano the r  t h a t  Champion would be a good investment ,  Daye 

Baying i n  March 1963 t h a t  i t  was a good t i m e  t o  buy Champion; P r i c e  

t e l l i n g  one customer t h a t  Champion would make twenty- f ive  c e n t s  a 

sha r e ;  Compton s ay ing  t o  one customer t h a t  Champion was a ho t  s t ock ;  

G r i f f i t h s  s t a t i n g  t h a t  Champion was a good s t ock ;  De Val1 s t a t i n g  t h a t  

Champion w a s  good a t  t h e  p r i c e ;  Grover adv i s i ng  t h a t  t h e  company had 

good agg re s s ive  management; Rawe s ay ing  t h a t  t h e  s t o c k  was moving f a s t ;  

B i h l e r  r e p r e s e n t i n g  t h a t  Champion a n t i c i p a t e d  e a r n i n g s  of twenty- f ive  

c e n t s  per  sha r e  and t h a t  t h e  ou t look  was e x c e l l e n t ;  and Sugden say ing  

t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t  was promoting t h e  s t ock  of Championand t h a t  i t  w a s  a 

good company. 

20. Each of t h e  i n v e s t o r s  a l s o  t e s t i f i e d  they  were never 

informed t h a t  Champion had a n e t  o p e r a t i n g  l o s s  f o r  t h e  year  ending 

1961 i n  exce s s  of $140,000 and a r e t a i n e d  d e f i c i t  i n  exce s s  of $60,000 

nor  of t h e  n e t  l o s s  f o r  t h e  year  ending1962 i n  exce s s  of approximately  

$244,000 nor of t h e  t o t a l  d e f i c i t  a s  a t  t h e  end of t h a t  pe r i od  of 

approximately  $305,000. Each of t h e  i n v e s t o r s  who t e s t i f i e d  concern-

i n g  t h e i r  purchases  a f t e r  February 20, 1963, t h e  d a t e  about when 

-9 
Champion l o s t  Forsberg ,  were no t  informed of t h a t  f a c t .  None of t h e  

-9/ The record  d i s c l o s e s  t h a t  f i v e  of t h e  n ine  salesmen s o l d  Champion 
s e c u r i t i e s  a f t e r  February 20,' 1963. R e g i s t r a n t ' s  books and r eco rds  
d i s c l o s e d  t h a t  i t  s o l d  Champion s t o c k  as late a s  March 25, 1963. 



investor-witnesses were informed that Champion had no current books 


and records nor were any of the investor-witnesses told that neither 


registrant nor the salesmen were able to secure financial statements 


or information with respect to Champion. All but one of its investor- 


witnesses testified they relied on the representations made to them 


by registrant's salesmen and placed trust and confidence in them. 


21. We have previously noted that there was no reasonable 


basis for the representations made regarding the price appreciation 


or earnings or that Champion was acquiring a number of companies or that 


an investment in Champion stock was a good investment for any particular 


-10/ 
customer and that all such representations were false and misleading. 


During the period that each of the salesmen made the extravagant and 


unwarranted representations concerning Champion they did so without 


seeing Financial statements and without knowledge of the financial 


condition of Champion, a matter of essential importance to an investor 


who is being urged to purchase securities. During January 1963 sales 


meetings were frequently held at registrant's offices in which Champion 


was the chief topic of conversation. At the same time salesmen were 


constantly urged to increase their production with the clear implication 


that Champion was the appropriate vehicle for such purpose. During 


January and February 1963 registrant's salesmen in Pittsburgh and 


Florida concentrated their efforts on the sale of Champion stock and 


-101 See pp.7 to 10,supra. 



did not concern themselves with any investigation to determine whether 

-11/ 

the information they gave investors had any actual basis in fact. It 

is evident from the similarity of the representations, though the 

actual words used by the individual salesmen may have differed, that 

a pattern of fraud evolved in which prospective purchasers were urged 

to buy Champion as a good investment, as a stock which would increase 

in price, because mergers had been or were about to be effected and 

that great expectations could be anticipated. Certainly, none of the 

information which the nine salesmen had justified the foregoing 

exhuberant representations. Even though some of the investor-witnesses 

testified that they knew that the purchase of Champion was a specula-

tion, the Courts have held that an investor nevertheless is entitled 

to the opportunity to evaluate the risk of loss, as against the hope of 


a lucrative return, from true statements of the financial status of 


-12/ 
the enterprise in which he is acquiring an interest. All of the 


salesmen in the instant case sold Champion without knowledge of the 


financial status of the company. The hearing examiner finds that in 


the sale of Champion stock in the period through March 1963 Rawe, Daye, 


Griffiths, Sugden, Bihler, Price, Compton,De Vall, and Grover willfully 


violated and aided and abetted registrant's willful violation of the 


-11/ Brourman visited registrant's Florida offices in January 1963, 
held sales meetings with the registered representatives, gave them 
what information he had about Champion and told them they had to 
increase their production or the office would be closed. He also 
informed them that the salesmen in Pittsburgh were making money 
selling Champion. 

-12/ S.E.C. v. -.-F. S. Johns & Co., 207 F. Supp. 566 (D. N.J. 1962). 



-13/ 
a n t i - f r a u d  p r o v i s i o n s  o f  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  a c t s  h e r e t o f o r e  mentioned and 

should  be named as c a u s e s  of  any o r d e r  o f  r e v o c a t i o n  of  r e g i s t r a n t  

t h a t  may be  e n t e r e d  by t h e  Commission. 

S a l e  of  Champion by Whitema! 

22. Whiternan was t h e  o n l y  respondent  who s o l d  Champion and 

appeared at  t h e  h e a r i n g s  and o f f e r e d  ev idence  i n  h i s  own b e h a l f .  T h r e e  

i n v e s t o r - w i t n e s s e s  t e s t i f i e d  concernfr ,g t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  made t o  

them by Whiteman r e g a r d i n g  t h e i r  purchases  of Champion s t o c k .  One of 

t h e s e  w i t n e s s e s  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  Whiteman t o l d  them t h a t  Champion w a s  

b e i n g  pushed by r e g i s t r a n t ,  t h a t  i t  shou ld  be up two o r  t h r e e  p o i n t s  

w i t h i n  t h e  nex t  s e v e r a l  months, t h a t  he had i n s i d e  i n f o r m a t i o n  t h a t  

t h e  p r i c e  of t h e  s t o c k  would i n c r e a s e ,  and t h a t  when t h e  s t o c k  would go 

up f i f t y  c e n t s  he would recommend t h a t  t h e  customer s e l l  and make a 

q u i c k  p r o f i t .  He a l s o  informed t h a t  customer t h a t  t h e  r e g i s t r a n t  w a s  

s h o r t  20,000 s h a r e s  and when r e g i s t r a n t  would s t a r t  t o  p i c k  up t h e  

s t o c k  t o  cover  i t s  s h o r t  p o s i t i o n  t h e  s t o c k  would move up. I n  

a d d i t i o n ,  he  informed t h e  customer t h a t  t h e  company had a g r e a t  growth 

p o t e n t i a l ,  t h a t  h e  had h i s  hands o n  1500 s h a r e s  which he cou ld  s e c u r e  

f o r  t h e  cus tomer  a t  less t h a n  t h e  market  and would sell  t h e  s t o c k  t o  

t h e  cus tomer  n e t  w i t h o u t  commission. To a n o t h e r  cus tomer ,  Whiteman 

s a i d  t h a t  he  thought  t h e r e  was a good p o s s i b i l i t y  t h a t  Champion would 

move v e r y  q u i c k l y ,  t h a t  i t  would go up f i f t y  c e n t s  i n  two o r  t h r e e  

weeks and t h a t  w i t h i n  a per iod  of  a c o u p l e  of months i t  should  go up 

-13/  See  F o o t n o t e  3, s u p r a .  



$3 to $5, that a man by the name of Dukow was buying heavily into the 


company and would merge the company with some of his other holdings. To 


the third customer Whiteman stated that within two or three years he 


should double or triple his investment. 


23. Whiteman does not deny selling Champion stock to his 


customers but urges that the representations he made to the three persons 

who testified were based upon information furnished to him by his 

superiors upon which he relied. The information which Whiteman received 

was both oral and in writing, the latter consisting of a copy of a letter 

on the stationery of Champion dated January 5, 1963 addressed to Crow 

and several teletype messages from registrant's office in Pittsburgh. 

At least two of the teletype messages purported to be typewritten notes 

of a telephone conversation between registrant's sales manager in 

Pittsburgh and registrant's manager of the Fort Lauderdale office, 

together with additional information placed on such notes by the manager 

of the Fort Lauderdale office. The notes indicated that Champion had 

acquired Forsberg, Sterling Hardware Co. of Chicago, Circle Air Products 

Co. of New York City, A 6 K Electric Corp. and Ultra Dynamics Corp. and 

planned to acquire a toy company. The earlier letter from Dukow to 

Crow stated that Forsberg had been acquired and that Sterling Hardware 

Co. was about to be acquired. Whiteman further testified that in addi- 

tion he sold the stock to his customers after checking the prices of 

Champion in the pink sheets, and noting that the stock had risen from 

-14/ The record discloses that Whiteman offered and sold in excess of 
5,000 shares of Champion to at least eight customers between the 
period February 12 and February 21, 1963. 



75C to $1.50. He admitted telling a customer that he believed that 

the momentum of price of the stock would continue end carry the stock 


still higher. He also admitted telling the customer that when the 


stock increased at least fifty cents he would suggest selling. Whiteman 


testified that after receiving the information concerning the purported 


acquisitions by Champion he looked in some financial publications for 


information about it and finding nothing dfd not pursue the matter 


further. 


24. On the basis of the record and Whiteman's own testimony 

there was no reasonable basis for the reckless representations made 

to customers, particularly since Whiteman although requesting financial 

information several times never had nor was able to obtain any financial 

information regarding Champion. There was nothing in the written 

information purportedly furnished to Whiteman which would provide a 

basis for the type of exhuberant representations made regarding Champion. 

Whiteman in fact testified that he "realized that I am at fault in 

selling the stock with not having a balance sheet or a financial state- 

ment or something around in front of me before I sell it.'* It is 

evident from his testimony that he was persuaded to offer the stock to 

his customers primarily because he firmly believed that the stock, 

having risen from 75C to $1.50,would continue to move up and thus 

provfde a quick profit to his customers. Moreover, the record shows 

that during the period Whiteman sold Champion stock all of the salesmen 

in Fort Lauderdale off;ce were concentrating their efforts selling that 

stock and Whiteman was caught up in the enthusiasm engendered in the 



I 

office regarding Champion and joined the distribution campaign being 


carried on. The Commission has held that the particularly high degree 


of inquiry required of a security salesman whose employer is engaged 


in the type of operation conducted in the Fort Lauderdale office 


during the period in question was not satisfied by Whiteman's 


reliance on the obviously inadequate information furnished to him by 


25. Whiteman urges in mitigation of his conduct that he only 


sold a relatively small portion of the Champion stock distributed by 


registrant, that he relied on the information furnished by his 


employers, that he discontinued sales because he became convinced he 


could not secure the financial statements promised him by registrant, 


that he had never been subjected to any disciplinary proceedings before 


the Commission or elsewhere and that his employment as a regifitered 


representative by a stock exchange member firm has been impossible 


because of the instant proceeding. The hearing examiner has con- 


sidered these arguments and concludes that Whiteman's conduct in ceasing 


sales does not, of course, provide an adequate explanation of the type 


of misrepresentations he made to customers nor excuse his prior failure 


to comply with the standards of fair dealing required of a security 


salesman to his customer. 




26. The hearing examiner finds that Whireman willfully vio- 


lated and aided and abetted registrant's violation of the anti-fraud 


provisions of the Securities Acts referred to above and should be named 


as a cause of any order of revocation of registrant as a broker-dealer 


which may be entered herein by the Commission. 


Fraudulent Sale of Safticraft by Registrant 


27. The order for proceedings alleges that during the period 


approximately August 1, 1962 to approximately April 30, 1963 regis- 


trant, in concert with the other respondents, made untrue statements 


of material facts and omitted to state material facts to purchasers 


of the common stock of Safticraft in willful violation of the anti- 


-16/ 
fraud provisions of the Securities Act and Securities Exchange Act. 


28. Seven witnesses testified concerning the representations 


made to them by five of registrant's salesmen in the Port Lauderdale 


and Miami offices of registrant. The salesmen told these customers that 


the price of Safticraft would increase substantially, that within a 


period of three to six months it should increase to approximately 


$15 a share or that the stock should go up eight or nine points, that 


registrant would push the stock up, that Safticraft had earned $1.06 


per share and would pay 10% stock dividend, that it was a good growing 


stock, that the company had lots of government contracts and that 


-171 
Safticraft would do six million dollars worth of business. At 


-161 See Footnote 3, supra. 

-171 Though the record contains evidence of sales of ~afticraft'prior 
to December 1962 the hearing examiner has not considered any rep- 
resentations with respect to sales to customers prior to approxi- 
mate1y'~ecember 13, 1962, the date registrant took over the 
operations of its Florida offices. 



least two of the salesmen induced their customers to sell other securi- 


ties suggesting that they could make more money purchasing Safticraft. 


29. There was no reasonable basis for the representations 

made to registrant's customers regarding price appreciation, earnings 

Qr that an investment in Safticraft was a good investment for any 

particular customer. In Pact, all such representations were false and 

misleading. Safticraft was incorporated in 1959 under the laws of t h e  

State of Delaware for the purpose of acquiring all of the  stock of 

Dupont, Inc., a Louisiana corporation engaged in the manufactdre of 

crew boats, barnes, tuns, pleasure craft and special purpose marine 

30. In April 1960 Safticraft filed a registration statement 

with this Commission offering 275,000 shares of i t s  common x t o c a k  at 

$3.00 per share which statement became effective on Septemhrr 30, 

1960. The underwriter named in the said registrarzsn statpmcnr was 

George OIKeill b Co., Inc. whose operations were Laken cver by 

experiencing financial difficulties. On June 19, 1362 ii judgment w ~ i s  

recorded in St. Mary's Parish, Louisiana, where Saftlcraft slnrl D u ~ t o r i t  

were located, against the companies for approsimdt e ! y $ I 7 , 0 0 0 .  T w c ~  

days later, another judgment was entered ag;llr:st Gup~ tn t Cclr n;ikrttxl-

mately $12,000. Between the period September 14,  1962 and .Januazu 16, 

1963 judgments in the amount of approximately $5b,500 were r p c ~ x d e d  

againse Safticraft and Dupont in the same Parish. i3etwec.n rhe  pesrioo 



May 9 ,  1962 and March 25, 1963 t a x  l i e n s  were recorded  i n  t h e  same 

P a r i s h  a g a i n s t  Dupont by t h e  F e d e r a l  I n t e r n a l  Revenue S e r v i c e  and t h e  

Department of  Labor of t h e  S t a t e  of Lou i s iana  t o t a l i n g  approx imate ly  

$40,800. I n  a d d i t i o n ,  t h e  F e d e r a l  I n t e r n a l  Revenue S e r v i c e  l e v i e d  on 

assessment  a g a i n s t  Dupont f o r  unpeiid t a x e s  f o r  t h e  yea r  end ing  1959 i n  

t h e  amount o f  approx imate ly  $6,000; a g a i n s t  S a f t i c r a f t  i n  t h e  amount of 

approx imate ly  $51,500 f o r  t a x e s  owed For f i s c a l  y e a r  ended October  31,  

1960; and f o r  approx imate ly  $77,700 a g a i n s t  S a f t i c r a f t  and Dupont f o r  

unpaid  t a x e s  f o r  t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r  ended October  31, 1961. On November 30,  

1962 t h e  I n t e r n a l  Revenue S e r v i c e  f i l e d  a Lien on a l l  o f  t h e  p r o p e r t y  

o f  S a f t i c r a f t  and Dupont f o r  unpaid wi thho ld ing  t a x e s  i n  t h e  amount of 

approx imate ly  $30,000. 

31. For  t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r  ended October  31,  1961 S a f t i c r a f t  had no 

c u r r e n t  books and r e c o r d s .  For t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r s  ended October  3L, 

1962 and 1963 S a f t i c r a f t  ma in ta ined  no books and records ,  Dupont kept  

l e d g e r  s h e e t s  w i t h  e n t r i e s  on  abou t  252 of  t h e  s h e e t s  t o  May 1 ,  1962 

and e n t r i e s  on  about  a n o t h e r  25% o f  t h e  s h e e t s  t o  J u l y  31, 1962. 

Approximately 50% o f  t h e  s h e e t s  were m i s s i n g .  No formal  books o r  

r e c o r d s  were main ta ined  by Dupont For t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r  ended October  31, 

1962 o r  t h e r e a f t e r .  I n  t h e  f i r s t  week of  J a n u a r y  1963 t h e  Duponr p l a n t  

was c l o s e d  down, t h e  e l e c t r i c i t y  and t e l ephone  c u t  o f f  and i t s  bank 

account  c l o s e d .  On March 1 ,  1963 an i n v o l u n t a r y  p e t i t i o n  i n  bankruptcy 

was f i l e d  by t h r e e  c r e d i t o r s  a g a i n s t  S a f t i c r a f t  and Dupont i n  the 

United S t a t e s  D i s t r i c t  Cour t  f o r  t h e  Western D i s t r i c t  o f  Lou i s iana .  
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The petition was dismissed on March 26, 1963. On June 28, 1963 


another petition in bankruptcy was filed in the same court against 


Safticraft and on September 24, 1963 Safticraft was adjudicated an 


involuntary bankrupt. 


32. In December 1962 Crow and Brourman knew that the OINeill 


company had underwritten Safticraft, that the stock had been sold to 


many Florida customers and that OtNeill, who was managing the Florida 


operations, continued to have an interest in the company and was making 


a market in the said stock. In the latter part of December 1962 or 


early January 1963 H. G. Kirkpatric ('@KirkpatricW) informed Crow and 


Brourman that Safticraft needed working capital. Crow and Brourman 


sought to obtain financing for Safticraft through its banking connec- 


tions in New York. On January 31, 1963 a bank officer advised registtsnt 


that no financing plan could be considered in light of the many suits 


and judgments pending against Safticraft as reflected in a Dun 6 Brad-


street report, a copy of which he sent to registrant. Current financial 


and other information was requested if the financing matter was to be 


pursued. Crow and Brourman testified that since early January 1963 


they constantly sought financial statements from Kirkpatric but none 


were ever produced. Notwithstanding receipt of above information and 


the absence of financial statements registrant continued selling of 


Safticraft in its Florida offices during the period January through 


March 1963. 


-l8/ The evidence disclofies that on March 28, 1963, the Wall Street 
Journal carried an article referring to the dismissal of the bank- 
ruptcy proceedings and stating that a Federal tax lien was still in 
effect and the Dupont plant still closed. 



33. Each of the investors who testified concerning the 


representations made to them also testified they were never informed 


that Safticraft and Dupont had no books and records, nor that registrant 


never received current financial statements, nor that judgments and 


tax liens were filed against Safticraft and Dupont. Those customers 


who were sold after the plant had been seized and closed in January 


1963 were never informed of such Fact. Crow and Brourman's explanation 


for continuing sales of Safticraft in light of their knowledge of the 


precarious financial condition of the company and the failure to 


receive current financial statements was in essence that Kirkpatric 


continually advised them that Safticraft was doing well and would be 


a successful company, that financial statements would be furnished 


shortly and that O'Neill who was presumably quite familiar with 


Safticraft's operations continued to have faith in the company. Blind 


faith and unwarranted reliance on assurances from officials of an 


issuer that a company is doing well is hardly a sufficient reason for 


a broker to recommend such company's stock to customers. Particularly 


is this true where, as in the instant case, registrant was advised by a 


reliable banking institution that financing would not be considered in 


the face of numerous judgments and tax liens and lack of financial 


statements. It was not until mid-April or early May that registrant 


issued instructions to cease further sales of Safticraft. Registrant's 


conduct manifests a clear lack of understanding of its duties and 


responsibilities as a broker to its customers and engaging in a course 


of business that may well be characterized in the language of the 




-191 
securities acts, as operating a fraud or deceit upon purchasers. 


34. The hearing examiner finds that in the period January 


through March 1963 registrant, aided and abetted by Crow and Brourman, 


willfully violated the anti-fraud provisions of Section 17(a) of the 


Securities Act and Sections 10(b) and lS(c) of the Exchange Act and 


Rules 17 CFR 240.10bS and 15~1-2 thereunder in the offer and sale of 


Safticraft. 


35. The Commission's order for proceedings alleges that the 


above-named persons made false and misleading representations and 


omitted to state material facts regarding Safticraft. None of them 


presented any evidence in their own behalf. The evidence given by the 


said witnesses as to the material representations made by each of the 


salesmen and the omissions to state material facts thus stands 


uncontroverted in the record. The hearing examiner credits the testimony 


of the investor-witnesses. 


36. Shaub, Grover, Sisk and Riley represented to the investor- 


witnesses that the price of Safticraft stock would increase substantially, 


Shaub representing that the price of Safticraft would rise to between 


$12 and $15 per share within three to six months, Grover saying the 


stock would be up a couple of points in a couple of months, Sisk repre- 


senting that the stock should go up eight or nine points and Riley 


indicatw a price rise. The four .salesmen also informed prospective 


investors that the purchase of Safticraft would be a good investment; 


-191 See footnotes 6 and 7, supra. 



Shaub r e p r e s e n t i n g  t o  one cus tomer  t h a t  S a f t i c r a f t  was a good growing 

s t o c k ,  t h a t  i t  had lo t s  of  government c o n t r a c t s  which cou ld  be d i s -  

counted a t  banks,  and to  a n o t h e r  cus tomer  t h a t  t h e  company w i l l  do $6 

m i l l i o n  wor th  of b u s i n e s s ,  S i s k  s a y i n g  t h a t  t h e  company would make 

money and R i l e y ,  t h a t  t h e  e a r n i n g s  were good. Zn a d d i t i o n ,  each o f  

t h e  i n v e s t o r s  who t e s t i f i e d  concern ing  t h e  above r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  a l s o  

t e s t i f i e d  t h e y  were never  t o l d  of  t h e  d i r e  f i n a n c i a l  c o n d i t i o n  of  

S a f t i c r a f t  n o r  o f  t h e  f a i l u r e  o f  S a f t i c r a f t  and Dupont t o  m a i n t a i n  any 

books and r e c o r d s ,  n o r  were t h e y  informed of  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  no f i n a n c i a l  

s t a t e m e n t s  were a v a i l a b l e  f o r  t h e  y e a r  1962. 

37.  The f i n d i n g s  made i n  t h e  p r e c e d i n g  s e c t i o n  w i t h  r e s p e c t  

t o  t h e  absence  o f  a r e a s o n a b l e  b a s i s  f o r  t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  made by 

r e g i s t r a n t  are e q u a l l y  a p p l i c a b l e  t o  t h e  Four sa lesmen i n  q u e s t i o n  

who, i n  f a c t ,  made t h e  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  and such f i n d i n g s  are 

i n c o r p o r a t e d  h e r e i n .  None of  t h e s e  sa lesmen made any e f f o r t  independ- 

e n t l y  t o  o b t a i n  c u r r e n t  i n f o r m a t i o n  concern ing  S a f t i c r a f t .  Each of  

them w i l l i n g l y  j o i n e d  t h e  campaign be ing  conducted i n  t h e  F l o r i d a  

o f f i c e s  of r e g i s t r a n t  t o  push t h e  s t o c k  of  S a f t i c r a f t  a s  evidenced by 

t h e  s i m i l a r i t y  of t h e  t y p e  of r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  made t o  cus tomers .  Each 

of  them mani fes ted  a n  u t t e r  l a c k  of unders tand ing  of a b r o k e r ' s  

r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  t o  h i s  customer.  

38. Though S i s k  o f f e r e d  no d e f e n s e  i n  h i s  behalf  d u r i n g  

t h e  h e a r i n g  he  forwarded a communication t o  t h e  h e a r i n g  examiner a f t e r  

t h e  r e c o r d  w a s  c l o s e d ,  which t h e  h e a r i n g  examiner accep ted  a s  proposed 



findings, stating that he became a registered representative of the 


registrant in December 1962 and sold Safticraft to the investor- 


witness who testified against him. He further states that his sales 


were made on the basis of information furnished to him by registrant 


including reports of Safticraft published by Value Line Survey, the 

\ 

tatest of which was dated August 20, 1962. It is apparent from his 


own statement that he made no effort to obtain any current facts 


concerning Safticraft. Since Sisk sold Safticraft in February and 


March of 1963 he had ample opportunity to secure current information 


and certainly could have learned that Dupont's plant had been closed. 


His reliance upon information furnished him by his superiors, which 


was at least six months old, was under the circumstances unwarranted. 


His statement confirms the hearing examiner's finding that Sisk showed a 


lack of understanding of the duties and responsibilities of a 


securities salesman to his customers. 


39. The hearing examiner finds that Shaub, Grover, Sisk and 


Riley willfully violated and aided and abetted registrant in willfully 


violating the anti-fraud provisions of the securities acts set forth 


above in the offer and sale of Safticraft and should be named as causes 


of any order of the Commission revoking registrant's registration as a 


broker-dealer. 


Findings as to Abbott, OINeill and Additional Findings- 


40. The Commissionts order alleges that Abbott was sales 


manager of registrant's Pittsburgh office, Riley was sales manager of 
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registrant's Fort Lauderdale office and O'Neill was sales manager of 


registrant's Miami office and in charge of all of registrant's actlv- 


ities in Florida. With respect to Abbott, the record discloses that he 


was originally employed as registered representative by registrant and 


from the early part of January to about the middle of February, 1963, 


he was sales manager in the Pittsburgh office. There is no dispute 


and Abbott testified that as sales manager his duties were to supervise 


his salesmen, listen to their conversations with customers and furnish 


them with whatever information they needed or wanted so as to enable 


them to sell securities to their customers. Abbott admitted that he 


originally brought Champion to the attention of registrant and in the 


latter part of December accompanied Crow to Champion's plant to over- 


look the operation. Abbott also admitted that early in January, 1963, 


he held a sales meeting in the Pittsburgh office, informed the salesmen 


that he had been impressed with what he had seen of Champion's operation, 


that he believed Dukow would provide aggressive management for Champion, 


that Champion had a good chance to succeed and if all the circumstances 


materialized the price of the stock could go up. Though admitting he 


listened to the salesmen's conversations with their customers he 


testified he never heard any salesmen represent the customers that 


the price of the stock would increase nor could he recall any other 


statements that were made by any particular salesman to any particular 


customer. Abbott further admitted that he spoke to Riley in 


Fort Lauderdale, knowing that Riley was the sales manager in that office, 


and furnished him with the information he had on Champion. 
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41. There is na dispute and O'Neill admits that he was in 


charge of the Florida operations of registrant from December 1962 


through about April of 1963. He was present in the Miami office when 


Brourman spoke to the salesmen about Champion. He had been a member 


of the brokerage firm which underwrote Safticraft and testified that he 


was fully familiar with its operations, that he knew Kirkpatric, the 


president oE Safticraft, and that he had recommended the purchase of 


that stock to his customers since approximately 1961, At the sales 


meetings which he held in the Miami office, Safticraft and Champion 


were constantly the topic of discussion during the period of January 


through at least April, 1963, and it is clear from the record that 


during that period that office was concentrating its efforts on both 


Saf ticraf t and Champion. 


42. Riley was admittedly the sales manager of the 


Fort Lauderdale office and supervised the salesmen there. Under his 


supervision both Safticraft and Champion were sold by the salesmen to 


their customers. Riley admittedly was present when Brourraah visited 


that office in January 1963 and recommended Champion as a vehicle by 


which salesmen could earn more commission. The evidence in the record 


discloses that Riley communicated with Abbott in Pittsburgh, received 


information from him concerning Champion and transmitted that informa- 


tion to the salesmen under his supervision. Riley's Jutles also 


include listening to salesmen regarding the nature of representations 


made by them to customers. It is also evident that during the period 


January through March, 1963, the efforts of Fort Lauderdale office 
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were primarily concerned with the sale of Safticraft and Champion. 


43. Ln fact, during the ~eriod January through March. 1963, 


registrant's activities in all three offices were concerned primarily 


with pushing the stock of Safticraft and Champion to its customers. In 


the Pittsburgh office, for example, registrant, during the period 


January and February, maintained thirty-eight telephones and its 


January telephone bill was in excess of $2400 and in February, in 


excess of $3100. During the latter month, in excess of 1,300 long- 


distance telephone calls were made and in January approximately 


1,000 such calls were made. 


44. In the opinion of the hearing examiner the pattern of 

fraudulent representations of the various salesmen in all three offices 

of registrant could hardly have occurred without the knowledge of each 

of the sales managers of each of the offices who, the record shows, 

were supposed to have been properly supervising their employees. 

Neither Abbott, OINeill or Riley can escape their responsibilities by 

failing to use reasonable care to learn the nature and type of 

representation being made by the salesmen whom they were presumably 

supervising. Such misrepresentations as were made to customers were 

the result of the failure of each of the sales managers to act upon the 

knowledge which they had or should have had and to exercise their 

responsibility to supervise. To that extent each of them became 

parties to the misrepresentations. In addition, it is clear from the 

record that Riley himself made affirmative misrepresentations to his 

customers ae indicated above. Lt is eaually clear from the record that 



O ' N e i l l  i n  a number of i n s t a n c e s  dur ing  February and March of 1963 

attempted t o  d i ssuade  customers from s e l l i n g  S a f t i c r a f t  s t ock ,  

a s s u r i n g  them t h a t  S a f t i c r a f t  would cont inue  t o  be a good investment ,  

t h a t  he and h i s  family owned S a f t i c r a f t  and were cont inu ing  t o  hold 

t h e  s tock  and t h a t  he cont inued t o  have g rea t  f a i t h  i n  t h e  company. 

45. I t  i s  ev ident  t h a t  t h e  techniques used i n  r e g i s t r a n t 4  s 

o f f i c e s  t o  push t h e  s tock  of Champion and S a f t i c r a f t  were t hose  

commonly a s soc i a t ed  wi th  a  "bo i l e r  room" and t h a t  Abbott, 04Neill and 

Ri ley  were knowing p a r t i c i p a n t s  i n  t h a t  ope ra t i on .  The hear ing  

examiner f i n d s  t h a t  Abbott, 04Neill and Riley a ided  and a b e t t e d  

r e g i s t r a n t ' s  w i l l f u l  v i o l a t i o n  of t he  a n t i - f r a u d  provis ions  of t h e  

s e c u r i t i e s  a c t s  mentioned above i n  t he  o f f e r  and s a l e  of Champion and 

S a f t i c r a f t  and should be named a s  causes  of any o rde r  of revocat ion 

of r e g i s t r a n t  as a broker -dea le r  t h a t  may be en t e r ed  by t h e  Commission. 

46. The o r d e r  f o r  proceedings a l l e g e s  t h a t  du r ing  t h e  same 

per iod  mentioned above r e g i s t r a n t  i n  concer t  wi th  t he  o t h e r  respondents  

w i l l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  t h e  a n t i - f r a u d  provis ions  of t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act and 

t h e  Exchange Act i n  t h e  o f f e r  and s a l e  of P.C.S. 

47. Seven wi tnesses  t e s t i f i e d  concerning the  r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  

made t o  them by fou r  of r e g i s t r a n t ' s  salesmen. The salesmen t o l d  t h e s e  

customers,  among o t h e r  th ings ,  t h a t  t h e  s tock  would move up i n  p r i c e  

i n  a sho r t  t i m e ,  o r  t h a t i t  would.double i n  s i x  months, o r  t h a t  t he  

s tock  was s u r e  t o  go up and a p r o f i t  could be made on i t ,  o r  t h a t  P.C.S. 
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r e g i s t r a n t  had i n s i d e  in format ion  about  t h e  company and t h a t  t h e  

i n v e s t o r  " c o u l d n ' t  p o s s i b l y  l o s e  money on it ," o r  t h a t  t h e  company was 

making money, t h a t  i t s  e a r n i n g s  were good and t h a t  i t  had a g r e a t  

~ o t e n t i a l .  

t i o n s  made t o  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  cus tomers .  I n  f a c t ,  a l l  such r e p r e s e n t a t i o n s  

were f a l s e  and mis lead ing .  On o r  about  January  15,  1963 P.C.S. f u r -

n i s h e d  s h a r e h o l d e r s  a n  annual r e p o r t  t o g e t h e r  w i t h  f i n a n c i a l  statements, 

a copy of which was rece ived  by r e g i s t r a n t .  The p r e s i d e n t ' s  let ter  t o  

s h a r e h o l d e r s  accompanying t h e  f i n a n c i a l  material informed s h a r e h o l d e r s  

t h a t  t h e  company's e a r n i n g s  from o p e r a t i o n s  f e l l  from n i n e t e e n  c e n t s  

t o  s i x  c e n t s  pe r  s h a r e .  On January  28, 1963 r e g i s t r a n t ' s  r e s e a r c h  

depar tment  p repared  a r e s e a r c h  r e p o r t  o n  P.C.S. which i t  f u r n i s h e d  i t s  

salesmen f o r  t r a n s m i t t a l  t o  customers .  The r e p o r t  d e p i c t s  n e t  income 

p e r  s h a r e  f o r  t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r s  ended October 31, 1959 th rough  1962 

and f o r  t h e  f i r s t  two f i s c a l  months o f  1963. For  t h e  y e a r  ended 1962 

. 
t h e  n e t  income p e r  s h a r e  was s t a t e d  as twenty-one c e n t s  w i t h  a n o t e  

t h a t  t h e  f i g u r e  i n c l u d e d  a s i x t e e n  c e n t  s p e c i a l  c r e d i t .  No f u r t h e r  

e x p l a n a t i o n  was f u r n i s h e d .  The record  shows t h a t  i n  f a c t  t h e  e a r n i n g s  

o f  P.C.S. dropped from n i n e t e e n  c e n t s  p e r  s h a r e  i n  1961 t o  s i x  c e n t s  

p e r  s h a r e  f o r  t h e  f i s c a l  y e a r  ended October  31, 1962. The i m p l i c a t i o n  

i n  t h e  r e s e a r c h  r e p o r t  was t h a t  t h e  company had e a r n i n g s  of twenty-one 

c e n t s  p e r  s h a r e  f o r  t h e  year  1962. The s ta tement  t h a t  t h e  p e r  s h a r e  



I 
I 
I 

I 
I I 

I 

I I 
I 1 

earn ings  i nc lude  a  s p e c i a l  c r e d i t  of s i x t e e n  c e n t s  was f a r  from 
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adequate under t h e  circumstances.  

49. The mi s r ep re sen t a t i on  of t h e  company's ea rn ing  i s  

i n t e n s i f i e d  by t h e  s ta tement  appearing immediately below t h e  spec i a l  

c r e d i t  n o t a t i o n .  Th i s  s ta tement  reads: 

"It is  expected t h a t  s a l e s  and ea rn ings  f o r  1963 should 
show a much b e t t e r  i n c r e a s e  than  1962. . . (Underl ining o u r s . )  

R e g i s t r a n t ' s  employee who prepared t h e  r e sea rch  r e p o r t  t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  

he d i scussed  t h e  manner i n  which t h e  per  share  earn ings  f o r  t he  f i s c a l  

y e a r ,  1962 should be shown wi th  Crow and Brourman and ' t h e  method 'used 

t o  d e p i c t  t he  ea rn ings  w a s  i n s e r t e d  wi th  t h e i r  approval .  I n  add i t i on ,  

t h e  r e p o r t  s t a t e d  under t he  heading "Conclusion" t h e  following: 

"We f e e l  t h a t  t h e  d a t a  process ing  f i e l d ,  which i n  i t s  
c u r r e n t  form is  less than  t e n  y e a r s  o l d ,  is j u s t  s t a r t i n g  
t o  make t h e  p r o f i t s  t h a t  could h e l p  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  of i t s  
p a r t i c i p a n t s  move forward, similar t o  t h e  way o t h e r  s e r v i c e  
companies' s e c u r i t i e s  have done i n  t h e  p a s t  two years ."  

Absent any explana t ion  of t h e  companies considered t o  be i n  t h e  d a t a  

process ing  f i e l d  which w a s  s t a r t i n g  t o  make p r o f i t s  and a  reasonable  

explana t ion  of t h e  similarities and d i f f e r e n c e s  between such companies 

and P.C.S., t h e  r e sea rch  r e p o r t  i s  misleading i n  i t s  imp l i ca t i on  t h a t  

t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  of P.C.S. would move forward. On t h e  b a s i s  of t h e  

r e sea rch  r e p o r t  prepared by r e g i s t r a n t  which i t  furn ished  t o  customers,  

t h e  hear inn  examiner has  l i t t l e  doubt i n  c r e d i t i n g  t h e  testimonv of t h e  

-211 The s p e c i a l  c r e d i t  r e f e r r e d  t o  i n  t h e  r e p o r t  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  r e c e i p t  
by t h e  company of $50,000 upon t h e  dea th  of i t s  p r i o r  p res ident .  



investor-witnesses who were told that the price of P.C.S. would 


increase and that the company's earnings were good. 


50. We have previously noted the Conunissionls decisions 


holding that a prediction of a specific or substantial increase in the 

22/ 


price of a speculative security is a fraud and cannot be justified: 


51. The hearing examiner finds. that in the sale of P.C.S. 

stock during the period alleged in the Comnissionfs order registrant, 

together with and aided and abetted by Crow and Brourman, wi 1lfully 

violated the anti-fraud provisions of Section 17(a) of the Securities 

Act and Sections 10(b) and l5(c) of the Exchange Act and Rules 

17 CFR 240.10b5 and 15cl-2 thereunder in the offer and sale of P.C.S. 

52. The representations referred to above were made by Rawe, 


Bihler, Price and Compton. None of them presented any defense in their 


own behalf and the testimony of the investor-witness is uncontroverted 


and credited by the hearing examiner. Each of the salesmen told their 


customers P.C.S. should rise in price, the company was making money 


-231 
and that the company would merge with another company. The findings 


above with respect to the absence of reasonable basis for the representa- 


tions made by registrant are equally applicable to the four salesmen 


who, in fact, made the representations. As in the case of the sales of 


-22/ See page10 and Footnote cited therein. 

-23/ Though the record reflects sales prior to August 1, 1962 the hear- 
ing examiner has not considered transactions prior to the period 
set forth in the order for proceedings during which violations 

allegedly occurred. 




Champion and Safticraft these salesmen made no effort to ascertain 


whether any of the statements made to investors had any reasonable basis. 


Registrant was making a market in P.C.S. and there salesmen were content 


to offer the stock because of registrant's apparent interest in the 


security without consideration of the duties and responsibilities they 


owed to their customers. 


53. The hearing examiner finds that Rawe, Bihler, Price and 


Compton willfully violated and aided and abetted registrant's willful 


violation of the anti-fraud provisions of the Securities Acts mentioned 


above in the offer and sale of P.C.S. and should be named as causes of 


any order of revocation of registrant's registration which may be 


entered by the Commission. 


Registrant s Pricing Practices 


54. The order for proceedings alleges that respondents also 


willfully violated the anti-fraud provisions of the securities acts in 


that registrant sold securities to customers at prices in excess of and 


having no reasonable relationship to the current market price as 


indicated by registrant's contemporaneous cost of such securities. 


5 5 .  The charges of unfair pricing relate to registrant's 

transactions during the period about August 1, 1962 to approximately 

April 30, 1963 in the shares of stock of Champion, P.C.S., Youngwood 

and Bundy. Comprehensive schedules reflecting the purchase and sale 

price of the securities of the four companies during the period in 

question were prepared by the Division of Trading and Markets from 
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registrant's books and records including the registrant's firm trading 


account, order tickets and confirmations. The accuracy of the 


information set forth in the schedules was not challenged by any of 
I 

the 'respondents . 
56. With respect to the sale of Champion stock, therecord 


shows that between January 8 and April 1, 1963 registrant sold about 


120,800 shares to customers and purchased approximately 91,000 shares 


from broker-dealers and customers. The price at which registrant 


purchased the said securities ranged from 314 to 1-718 per share and 


the sale price from 1 to 1-718 per share. During the foregoing period 


registrant purchased shares of Champion on each trading date it sold 


such securities to customers except for one day, in January, two days 


in February and two days in March 1963. The price at which registrant 


sold Champion securities to customers in over 300 transactions 


represented mark-ups ranging from 7.6 to 66.6% with an average mark-up 


of 24.82%. 


57. With respect to sale of P.C.S. stock, the record shows 


that between September 14, 1962 and March 15, 1963 registrant sold 


about 24,250 shares to customers and purchased approximately 25,700 


shares from broker-dealers and customers. Out of a total of about 


160 sales to customers all but four were sold at 3-314. In approxi- 


mately 60% of such sales registrant purchased the said securities at 


3 and the remaining 40% were purchased at prices ranging from 1-1/4 
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t o  3-314. During t h e  fo rego ing  per iod  r e g i s t r a n t  purchased s h a r e s  

of P.C.S. on  each  t r a d i n g  d a t e  i t  s o l d  such s e c u r i t i e s  t o  customers  

excep t  f o r  t h r e e  days i n  October ,  f o u r  days  i n  November, two days  i n  

December, 1962, two days i n  January  and two days i n  February,  1963. 

The p r i c e  a t  which r e g i s t r a n t  s o l d  P.C.S. s e c u r i t i e s  t o  customers 

-251 
r ep re sen t ed  mark-ups rang ing  from 20.82 t o  114.2% wi th  an average 

mark-up of  26.8%. 

58. With r e s p e c t  t o  t h e  sale of Youngwood s t ock ,  t h e  r e co rd  

shows t h a t  between September 17,  1962 and March 13, 1963 r e g i s t r a n t  

s o l d  approximately  17,000 s h a r e s  t o  customers and purchased approxi-  

mate ly  18,600 s h a r e s  from b roke r -dea l e r s  and customers .  The p r i c e  at 

which r e g i s t r a n t  purchased t h e  s a i d  s e c u r i t i e s  ranged from 2 t o  4 -1 /8  

p e r  s h a r e  and t h e  s a l e  p r i c e  from 2-1/2 t o  4-1/4.  During t h e  fo r ego ing  

pe r i od  r e g i s t r a n t  purchased s h a r e s  of  Champion on  each t r a d i n g  d a t e  i t  

s o l d  such s e c u r i t i e s  t o  customers  excep t  f o r  f o u r  days i n  September, 

two i n  October ,  one in 'December,  1962, and s i x  days  i n  January  and one 

i n  February,1963. . .The  p r i c e s  at which r e g i s t r a n t  s o l d  Youngwood 

s e c u r i t i e s  t o  customers  i n  f i f t y - s i x  t r a n s a c t i o n s  r ep r e sen t ed  mark-ups 

rang ing  from 16.6% t o  45.5% wi th  an average  mark-up of 24.2%. 

-241 S i x t e e n  such  purchases  were made a t  a p r i c e  of 3 -3 /4  and one 
i s o l a t e d  purchase at 5-114. 

-25/ The mark-up i n  a l l  but 15 t r a n s a c t i o n s  was 25%. Out of t h e  15 
t r a n s a c t i o n s ,  one r ep re sen t ed  a mark-up of 114.2 and one a mark-up 
of  20.8%. E igh t  such t r a n s a c t i o n s  r ep r e sen t ed  mark-ups of  36.3,  
one a t  87.5,  ano the r  at 85.7 and t h e  remaining two at 40 and 
46.3% r e s p e c t i v e l y .  



59. With respect to the sale of Bundy stock, the record 


shows that between August 1, 1962 and April 26, 1963 registrant sold 


about 23,500 shares to customers and purchased approximately 20,200 


shares from customers. The price at which registrant purchased its 


securities ranged from 3/4 to 1-5/8 per share and the sales price 


from 7/8 to 1-7/8 per share. During the foregoing period registrant 


purchased shares of Bundy on each date it sold such securities to 


customers except for three days in August, two days in September, 


five days in October, two days in November, one day in December, 1962, 


four days in January, two days in March and three days in April, 1963. 


The prices at which registrant sold Bundy securities to customers in 


about 100 transactions represented mark-ups ranging Erom 8.3% to 


150% with the average mark-up of 36.23%. 


60. The percentage mark-up set forth above with respect to 


each of the four securities in question was arrived at by using the 


highest price paid by registrant on each day it sold such securities 


to customers and in the several instances in which no securities 


were purchased on the day a sale was made to a customer the price used 


was the highest cost to registrant the day before or the day after such 


sales except in three instances in Bundy in which the purchase price 


used for computation was two days prior to the sale to the customer. 


61. The Commission has consistently held and the Courts 


have affirmed, that it is a fraud and deceit upon customers to effect 


transactions at prices not reasonably related to the current market 


prices and that a dealer's contemporaneous costs are the best evidence 
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of current market prices, in the absence of countervailing evidence. 

It is evident from the record that during the periods registrant sold 


Champion, P.C.S., Youngwood and Bundy it purchased the said securities 


on qach date it sold such securities to customers with relatively few 


exceptions and in those instances such securities were purchased within 


a day or two prior or subsequent to such sales. No evidence was offered 


by registrant to show that the purchase price in the mark-up trans- 


actions reflected above were not representative of the prevailing market 


at the time of the transaction with the customer or presented any 


reasons why its contemporaneous purchase prices should not be used as a 


basis for determining the fairness of registrant's prices to its 


customers. Registrant's justification for its pricing policies was 


offered by Crow who testified that the policy was to sell to the customer 


at the wholesale or inside offer price,-which was the price at which 


securities were sold to dealers. This pricing policy resulted in 


charging customers unfair prices in light of the evidence that the 


market in the securities in question was dominated by registrant who 


was engaged in a retail selling campaign. 


62. The Commission has held that where a dealer dominates the 


-26/ Naftalin 6 Co., Inc., Securities Exchange Act Release No. 7220 
(January 10, 1964); Maryland Securities Co., Inc., Securities 
Exchange Act Release No. 7232 (February 4, 1964); Samuel B. 
Franklin & Co. v. S.E.C. 290 F. 2d 719 (C.A.9, 19611, 

-Cert. denied 368 U.S. 889; Maurice Barnett Jr. v. S.E.C. 319 



market in a security the dealer's own inside offer cannot be used as 
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a basis for determining mark-ups. An examination of the evidence dis- 


closes that registrant dominated the market in the four securities in 


question. Lenchner Covato or its predecessor had acted as underwriter 
28/ 

of the securities of P.C.S., Bundy and ~oun~wood-and was making a 

market in such securities when registrant took over its operation. 


Registrant continued to make a market in the said securities. 


63. Between about August 1 and November 12, 1962 Colkin 


Bomback 6 Co., Inc. ("Golkinu) and E. W. Stewart 6 Co., Inc. ("Stewart"), 


Golkints correspondent in Florida, entered daily quotations on P.C.S. 


in the National Daily Quotations Service (pink sheets). Between 


November 12 and December 14, 1962 Golkin alone appeared in the pink 


sheets and from the latter date through May 8, 1963 Golkin and registrant 


appeared in the said sheets on P.C.S. During the above periods no other 


brokers appeared in the said sheets except that another broker inserted 


a quotation on February 7, 1963. 


64. From approximately August 1, 1962, through ~ p r i  1 16, 1963, 


registrant and Golkin inserted daily quotations in the pink sheets on 


Bundy. No other brokers appeared in the pink sheets on Bundy during 


this period on a regular basis except that from about the middle of 


August through November, 1962, another broker-dealer entered bids only 


-27/ General investing Corporation, Securities Exchange Act Release 
No. 7316 (May 1964). 

-28/ Registration statements were filed with the Commission by Bundy and 
Youngwood which were declared effective in 1961 and by P.C.S. which 
became effective in 1962. (File Nos. 2- 18723; 2-17957; 2-19105) 



i n  amounts va ry ing  from 200 t o  500 s h a r e s ,  which were c o n s i s t e n t l y  

lower than  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  b id .  From approximately  August 1,  1962 t o  

t h e  middle of March 1963 Golkin and o t h e r  b rokers  en t e r ed  q u o t a t i o n s  

i n  t h e  pink s h e e t s  on  Youngwood on a r e g u l a r  b a s i s .  On Apr i l  2 ,  1963, 

r e g i s t r a n t  began e n t e r i n g  quo t a t i ons  i n  t h e  pink s h e e t s  on Youngwood 

and cont inued such l i s t i n g  u n t i l  May 3, 1963. 

65. The r eco rd  i s  c l e a r  t h a t  G o l k i n t s  q u o t a t i o n s  on  P.C.S., 

Bundy and Youngwood were i n s e r t e d  i n  t h e  pink s h e e t s  as a r e s u l t  of  

an unders tand ing  between Golk in ' s  t r a d e r  and r e g i s t r a n t ' s  t r a d e r ,  

E i s e n s t a d t ,  whereby Golkin w a s  a s su r ed  of a market i n  t h e  s a i d  s e c u r i -  

t ies  and would r e c e i v e  1/16 p r o f i t  p e r  s h a r e  on a l l  purchases  and 

sales i n  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  of t h e  t h r e e  companies. Golkin  was au tho r i zed  

t o  execu te  a l l  t r a n s a c t i o n s  up t o  100 s h a r e s  wi thout  p r i o r  c l e a r ance  

by r e g i s t r a n t  and a l l  t r a n s a c t i o n s  i n  excess  of  t h a t  amount were 

c l e a r e d  by r e g i s t r a n t  i n  advance. The r eco rd  shows t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  

t r a d e r  t e l e t y p e d  d a i l y  quo t a t i ons  f o r  i n s e r t i o n  i n  t h e  pink s h e e t s  t o  

Golkin  u n t i l  some t i m e  i n  December 1962, when t h e  t e l e t y p e  was d i s -  

cont inued and t h e r e a f t e r ,  by t e lephone .  There  i s  a l s o  evidence t h a t  

on  a number of  occa s ions  Golkin was i n s t r u c t e d  t o  i n s e r t  b id  and o f f e r  

quo t a t i ons  i n  t h e  pink s h e e t s  a t  a p a r t i c u l a r  p r i c e  and t o  t r a d e  o n l y  

a t  lower p r i c e s .  

66.  With r e s p e c t  t o  Champion Crow t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t  

was t h e  dominant market maker i n  t h a t  s t o c k  from t h e  beginning of  

January  t o  at  least March 1963. The record  a l s o  d i s c l o s e s  t h a t  on  

about  25 o u t  of  about  40 t r a d i n g  days  between January  7 and 



February 26, 1963 r e g i s t r a n t  had t h e  h igh  bid  and o f f e r  o r  both i n  t h e  

pink s h e e t s .  I n  a d d i t i o n ,  d u r i n g  t h e  per iod January  through March 

r e g i s t r a n t  r a i s e d  t h e  b id  o r  o f f e r  on n i n e  occas ions .  

67. Thus,  i t  is ev iden t  from t h e  record  t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t  

mainta ined and dominated t h e  market i n  P.C.S., Bundy, Youngwood and 

Champion. I t  is abundant ly  c l e a r  t h a t  from t h e  f a l l  of 1962 through 

March 1963 r e g i s t r a n t  was engaged i n  a retail s e l l i n g  campaign i n  a l l  

f o u r  s e c u r i t i e s .  Under t h e  c i rcumstances  t h e  use of  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  

-29 / 
i n s i d e  o f f e r  as a b a s i s  f o r  computing mark-up was improper. 

68. There  is no d i s p u t e  and Crow and Brourman admit t h a t  

u l t i m a t e  r e s p o n s i b i l i t y  f o r  de te rmin ing  t h e  p r i c e  a t  which s e c u r i t i e s  

were t o  be s o l d  t o  customers  was t h e i r s .  However, t h e  record d i s c l o s e s  

t h a t  t h e  mark-ups were a r r i v e d  a t  a s  a r e s u l t  of confe rences  between 

Crow, Brourman, E isens tad t ,  Lenchner and r e g i s t r a n t ' s  comp t ro l l e r .  A t  

t h e s e  confe rences ,  r e g i s t r a n t ' s  p o s i t i o n  i n  t h e  s e c u r i t i e s  of P.C.S.,  

Bundy and Youngwood w a s  d i s cus sed  and t h e  amount of  mark-up t o  be charged 

t o  customers w a s  cons idered .  Crow t e s t i f i e d  he r e l i e d  p r ima r i l y  on  t h e  

exper ience  of E i s e n s t a d t  and Lenchner and t h a t  t h e  d i s c u s s i o n s  r ega rd ing  

mark-ups r e s u l t e d  i n  a po l i cy  determined by a l l  of t h e  p a r t i c i p a n t s  a t  

t h e  conference.  E i s e n s t a d t  and Lenchner were exper ienced  t r a d e r s ,  had 

-29/ See Report of t h e  Spec i a l  Study of  t h e  S e c u r i t y  Markets r e l a t i n g  t o  
t h e  NASDts mark-up po l i cy .  H. Doc. 95, P t . 2 ,  Chapt.  V I I ,  88 th  Cong., 
1st Ses s .  (1963) at  p. 651; General  Lnvest ing Corp. ,  supra .  



conducted such functions in Lenchner Covato prior to the time registrant 


took over the firm's operations and the policies regarding mark-ups 


were carried over from the Lenchner firm and continued by registrant. 


Eisen~tadt and Lenchner, though admitting they participated in the 


conferences at which mark-ups were considered, urge that they "protested" 


that the spreads were too great and that the stock was being retailed 


at prices considerably higher than the wholesale market. Eisenetadt 


also testified he complained to Brourman about the large mark-ups 


consistently over a period of several months. Eisenstadt contends that 


ultimate responsibility for fixing the pricing policies rested with the 


management, to wit: Crow and Brourman, and that Eisenstadt and Lenchner 


were merely carrying out instructions as employees of registrant. In 


addition, Lenchner further argues that he became the trader on March 1, 


1963 when Eisenstadt resigned and served as such for a period of only 


two weeks. Prior thereto he contends he was a registered representative 


and merely assisted Mr. Eisenstadt on occasion to relieve Eisenstadt 


during lunch periods or other absences from the trading desk. 


69. On the basis of the record the hearing examiner is of the 


opinion that notwithstanding the fact that Crow and Brournan as principal 


officers of the registrant had ultimate prime responsibility for all of 


registrant's operations, Eisenstadt and Lenchner participated in the dis- 


cussions regarding mark-ups and the final policy determination arrived at 


as a result of their participation. In addition, the hearing examiner was 


persuaded by the evidence that Eisenstadt and knchner were given 




a u t h o r i t y  t o  o p e r a t e  i n  t h e  t r a d i n g  room and e x e r c i s e d  such a u t h o r i t y  

ove r  a pe r i od  of months. Thus, f o r  example, arrangements w i th  broker- 

d e a l e r s  t o  e n t e r  quo t a t i ons  i n  t h e  p ink  s h e e t s  and t h e  f u r n i s h i n g  of 

p r i c e s  was admi t t ed ly  accomplished by E i s e n s t a d t  and Lenchner. 

Documentary ev idence  i n  t h e  record  d i s c l o s e s  t h a t  t h e  t e l e t y p e  

messages between r e g i s t r a n t  and t h e  Golkin  f i r m  were d i c t a t e d  by 

E i s e n s t a t  on a d a i l y  b a s i s  when t h a t  s e r v i c e  was i n  o p e r a t i o n  and 

t h e r e a f t e r  conducted by E i s e n s t a d t  by te lephone .  I t  i s  apparen t  from 

t h e  record  t h a t  E i s e n s t a d t  had wide d i s c r e t i o n  i n  t h e  purchase  and 

sale of s e c u r i t i e s  on r e g i s t r a n t ' s  behalf  and e x e r c i s e d  such d i s c r e t i o n .  

70. Accordingly,  t h e  hea r i ng  examiner f i n d s  t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t ,  

t o g e t h e r  w i t h  o r  a i ded  by Crow, Brourman, E i s e n s t a d t  and Lenchner, 

w i l l f u l l y  v i o l a t e d  S e c t i o n  17(a )  of t h e  S e c u r i t i e s  Act and S e c t i o n s  

10(b)  and 1 5 ( c ) ( l )  o f  t h e  Exchange Act and Rule 17 CFR 240.10b-5 and 

15c l -2  the reunder  i n  t h a t  they e f f e c t e d  s e c u r i t i e s  t r a n s a c t i o n s  w i t h  

customers  which were no t  reasonably  r e l a t e d  t o  t h e  p r e v a i l i n g  market 

as determined by r e g i s t r a n t ' s  same-day o r  s u b s t a n t i a l l y  contemporaneous 

purchase p r i c e  and which p r i c e s  were u n f a i r  and t h a t  each of  them should 

be named as a cause  o f  any o r d e r  of revoca t ion  of r e g i s t r a n t  a s  a broker-

d e a l e r  which may be en t e r ed  by t h e  Commission. 

F a i l u r e  t o  Comply w i t h  Record Keeping Requirements 

71. The o r d e r  f o r  proceedings  a l l e g e s  t h a t  r e g i s t r a n t  w i l l f u l l y  

v i o l a t e d  t h e  r e c o r d  keeping requirements  of t h e  Exchange ~ c t  and Rules  

thereunder .  The record  d i s c l o s e s ,  and r e g i s t r a n t  d i d  n o t  c o n t r o v e r t  

t h e  f a c t ,  t h a t  between August 1, 1962 and Apri l  30, 1963 i t  f a i l e d  t o  
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show the time of entry of brokerage order memoranda reflecting pur- 


chases or sales of securities. Such failure was reflected on 


approximately 200 order slips constituting about 23% of registrant's 


orders relating to transactions in Champion and Bundy. Accordingly 


the hearing examiner finds that registrant willfully violated 


Section 17(a) of the Exchange Act and Rule 17 CPR 240.17a-3 there- 


under and that Crow and Brourman, who shared responsibility for the 


maintenance of the records, aided and abetted in such willful violation. 


Public Interest 


72. The sole remaining question is whether it is in the 


public interest to revoke the registration of the registrant as a 


broker-dealer. On the basis of the record the hearing examiner con- 


cludes that it contains overwhelming evidence of serious misconduct, 


complete disregard of the financial welfare of customers and utter 


abdication of the fiduciary duties which a broker-dealer owes to his 


customers. The hearing examiner found that registrant willfully 


violated the anti-fraud provisions of the securities acts in the offer 


and sale of Champion, Safticraft and P.C.S., and engaged in the practice 


of selling securities to customers at prices in excess of and having no 


reasonable relationship to the current market prices as indicated by 


registrant's contemporaneous costs to the detriment of the customers 


and for its own profit. The practice of charging unreasonable mark-ups 


to customers not only violated the anti-fraud provisions of the securi- 


ties acts but was inconsistent with the just and equitable principles 




Q 

9 

of trade in contravention of Section 1 and 4 of Article I11 of the 


Rules of Fair Practice of the NASD, of which registrant was a 


member. 


73. The Commission has frequently emphasized that inherent 


in the relationship of every broker-dealer with his customer is the 


implied vital representation that the customer will be dealt with 


-311 
fairly and honestly. It is clear from the statements of more than 


forty of registrant's customers who testified regarding registrant's 


activities that no inquiry was made of the investment aims and needs 


of such customers nor was any information elicited from these customers 


by the salesmen as to their financial condition so as to determine the 


desirability of recommending any particular security to such customer. 


Nearly all of the witnesses who testified stated that they placed 


complete reliance on registrant's salesmen and were led to believe that 


the recommendations being made to them were in their best interests. 


74. Registrant's manner of conducting business indicated a 


type of operation in which efforts were continually made to increase 


business without regard to responsibilities to customers. Sales 


meetings were conducted practically on a daily basis at all of regis- 


trant's offices at which salesmen were importuned to increase production. 


301 See NASD Manual, pp. C-1, C-6 
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Commissions were increased to spur on such activities. Though attempts 


to increase production is not an evil per se the means and methods 


countenanced by registrant in permitting its salesmen to make 


unwarranted representations and the absence of proper supervision to 


prevent such representations evinces a lack of understanding of the 


fiduciary relationship between a broker and his customer. The type 


of misrepresentations made and omissions to state material facts 


which were known or should have been secured by registrant and its 


salesmen reveals a pattern of fraudulent or recklessly negligent 


conduct, which if not encouraged by Crow and Brourman, certainly not 


effectively sought to be restrained, resulting in conduct inimical to 


the best interests of customers. 


Recommendation 


In view of the willful violations found, it is respectfully 


recommended that the Commission enter an order finding that it is in 


the public interest to revoke registrant's registration as a broker 


and dealer and expel it from membership in the NASD. It is further 


recommended that the Commission find that Crow, Brourman, Rawe, Daye 


Griffiths, Sugden, Abbott, Bihler, Lenchner, Price, Compton, DeVall, 

-321 

Eisenstadt, Shaub, Whiteman, Grover, Sisk, Riley and OfiNeill willfully 


-321 Though the hearing examiner has found that Whiteman willfully 
violated the securities acts he is of the view that there are cer- 
tain mitigating factors which may be considered by the Commission. 
Whiteman's candid testimony recognizing his fault in selling 
speculative securities without knowledge of the financial condi- 
tion of the company shows, at least, an awareness of the responsi- 
bilities of a security salesman. In addition, consideration 



violated and aided and abetted in registrant's willful violations of 


the provisions of the Securities Act and the Exchange Act and the 


respective Rules thereunder, set forth above, and that each of such 


individuals is a cause of any order of revocation or expulsion entered 


with respect to regis'trant. 

-331 

Respectfully submitted, 


Washington, D. C. 

November 18, 1964 


should also be given to the fact that he made some effort to obtain 
information and discontinued selling Champion after ten days because 
he was unable to obtain supplemental information sought from regis- 
trant. If the sanctions in the recent amendments to the Exchange 
Act (Public Law 88-467, 88th Congress S.1642 effective August 20, 
1964) were applicable, the hearing examiner would be inclined to 
recommend that Whiteman be suspended for a period of four months 
from being associated with a broker-dealer and thereafter permit him 
to beso employed under appropriate supervision. 

-331 To the extent that proposed findings and conclusions submitted by 
the Division of Trading and Markets, Whiteman, Eisenstadt and 
Lenchner are in accord with the views set forth herein they are sus- 
tained and to the extent they are inconsistent therewith they are 
expressly overruled. 


